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           1                       P R O C E E D I N G S

           2                               - - -

           3                MR. THORP:  The purpose of this public

           4      hearing is to accept comments on the official record

           5      regarding a draft permit to install issued to Apex

           6      Environmental, LLC, for the existing solid waste
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           7      landfill located at 11 County Road 78 in Jefferson

           8      County.  Ohio EPA published a public notice to announce

           9      the hearing and public comment period regarding the

          10      proposal in newspapers in the area.  This notice was

          11      issued in Ohio EPA's Weekly Review, which the

          12      publication lists by county all Agency activities and

          13      actions taking place in the State of Ohio.

          14                Written and oral comments received as part of

          15      the official record are reviewed by Ohio EPA prior to

          16      the final action of the Director.  To be included in

          17      the official record, written comments must be received

          18      by Ohio EPA by the close of business on Thursday, July

          19      23rd, 2009.  Comments received after this date may be

          20      considered as time and circumstances permit but will

          21      not be a part of the official record for this hearing.

          22      Written comments regarding the permit can be filed with

          23      me tonight or submitted to Ohio EPA, Division of Solid

          24      and Infectious Waste Management, Attention System
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           1      Management Unit, P.O. Box 1049, Columbus, Ohio

           2      43216-1049.  Also, this address can be found on the

           3      agenda for this hearing.  It's important for you to

           4      know that all comments received in writing at the

           5      agency, all written comments given to me tonight, and

           6      all verbal comments given here tonight are given the

           7      same consideration.  I ask that all exhibits, including

           8      written speeches, maps, photographs, overheads and any

           9      other physical evidence referred to in your testimony

          10      be submitted to me tonight as part of the official

          11      record.  If you choose not to submit the information,
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          12      Ohio EPA cannot ensure the accuracy of your testimony.

          13                A court reporter is here to make a

          14      stenographic record of tonight's proceedings.

          15                The Director, after taking in to

          16      consideration the recommendations of the program staff

          17      and comments presented by the public may issue or deny

          18      the permit.  Once a final decision is made by the

          19      Director, the final permit decision, along with the

          20      response to comments will be communicated to the

          21      applicant, all persons who have submitted comments and

          22      all persons who have presented testimony at tonight's

          23      hearing.

          24                The final actions of the Director are
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           1      appealable to the Environmental Review Appeals

           2      Commission, or ERAC.  The Board is separate from Ohio

           3      EPA and reviews cases in accordance with Ohio's

           4      environmental laws and rules.  Any ERAC decision is

           5      appealable to the Franklin County Court of Appeals and

           6      any order of the Court of Appeals is appealable to the

           7      Supreme Court of Ohio.

           8                If you wish to present testimony at this

           9      hearing tonight and have not already completed a blue

          10      card, please do so at this time and return it to me or

          11      an Ohio EPA representative.  The cards are available at

          12      the registration table and, also, Erin has some there

          13      in the back.

          14                Each individual may testify only once and so

          15      I ask that you use your time wisely and that you are

          16      respectful of others providing their comments and

          17      questions.
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          18                There is no cross-examination of the speaker

          19      or Ohio EPA representatives in public hearings of this

          20      type.  Ohio EPA public hearings afford citizens an

          21      opportunity to provide input.  Therefore, we will not

          22      be able to answer questions during this hearing.

          23                The hearing officer or an Ohio EPA

          24      representative may ask clarifying questions of speakers
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           1      to ensure the record is as complete and as accurate as

           2      possible.

           3                If you have a question, please phrase your

           4      comments in the form of a question and the agency will

           5      address your concerns in writing in the response to

           6      comments.

           7                Out of courtesy for elected officials here

           8      tonight, I always request they make themselves known to

           9      me at this time and I will give them the chance to

          10      testify first.  Are there any elected officials here

          11      who would like to put comments on the record?  Okay.

          12                In that case, as I call your name, please

          13      come forward, state your name and spell it for the

          14      record and proceed with your testimony.

          15                The first person requesting to testify is

          16      George Williams, followed by Laura Fagerstrom.

          17                MR. WILLIAMS:  George Williams, G-e-o-r-g-e.

          18      Williams, W-i-l-l-i-a-m-s.  I would like to comment on

          19      this landfill.  I moved here in 2002 from Florida and

          20      the odors were not that bad in 2002, but within the

          21      last six months to a year it's really horracious.  We

          22      have fly problems.  We have got -- the odor is so bad
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          23      that you can't even go outside.  And I live probably --

          24      well, I live up on County Road 39 and it's quite a
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           1      distance from the dump.  And it's a terrible, terrible

           2      smell.  And I can't understand how they got the

           3      original permit let alone expect people to go along

           4      with an enlargement.  They should be closing it down,

           5      not enlarging it.  So I think the people of this

           6      community should get a petition to shut it down, not

           7      enlarge it.  Thank you.

           8                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Mr. Williams.  Next is

           9      Laura Fagerstrom, followed by Tom Gardner.  Laura.

          10                MS. FAGERSTROM:  Laura Fagerstrom, L-a-u-r-a

          11      F-a-g-e-r-s-t-r-o-m.  I will just reiterate what I

          12      said.  I would like to address the landfill due to the

          13      fact that my husband has health problems.  He has had

          14      three kidney transplants.  I worry about his health.  I

          15      worry about my 15-year-old son.  It's inadequate living

          16      conditions, unable to go outside and enjoy the fresh

          17      air.  You know, trying to save money in this economy

          18      with our air conditioning, you know, when you can't

          19      open your windows because the stench is so horrible.  I

          20      mean, the other night it literally smelled like dirty

          21      diapers.  The flies are horrible.  I can't keep the

          22      flies out of my house unless I don't ever go in and out

          23      the door.  So I would like to complain about the fly

          24      population.
�     7

           1                Also, my property value -- I mean, everyone

           2      is affected here.  How are we ever going to be able to
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           3      sell our properties some day when we would like to?

           4      And I would like to be compensated for that.  Thank

           5      you.

           6                MR. THORP:  Next is Tom Gardner, followed by

           7      Mark Paulette.  Tom.

           8                MR. GARDNER:  Tom Gardner, G-a-r-d-n-e-r.

           9      Tom you can handle, right?

          10                As many of you -- in response to your

          11      question, there is pending litigation right now in

          12      relation to the very things that you have described

          13      here and certainly that is going to come to fruition at

          14      some point in time so rest assured that that's going to

          15      be addressed.

          16                MS. FAGERSTROM:  Thank you.

          17                MR. GARDNER:  After reviewing the technical

          18      aspects of the draft permit for the Apex Sanitary

          19      Landfill, I must admit it that was way over my head and

          20      hands as far as my ability to understand the technical

          21      aspects of it.  So having said that, I am requesting

          22      the names and vitae of the OEPA engineers who reviewed

          23      the plan and recommended to the Director the draft

          24      permit be adopted.
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           1                Also, I would like to know -- there are two

           2      agencies that are regulators.  One is the EPA and the

           3      other is the Jefferson County Health Department and I

           4      would like to know who reviewed the plan, the technical

           5      aspects of the plan, for the health department and

           6      what, in fact, were the comments that were made in

           7      relation to the plan?
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           8                It would only seem logical that those

           9      individuals who reviewed the plan be competent and

          10      accountable in the light of the impact that it would

          11      have on our community.

          12                Also, I hate to pick on old scabs, okay,

          13      however, in Mr. Thorp's June 22nd Citizens' Advisory,

          14      two things came to mind:  A, Mr. Thorp's letter stated

          15      that the plan includes, quote, "Additional information

          16      about the odor control measures," and after reviewing

          17      the plan and the draft permit, which was initiated in

          18      June 2008, revised in January of 2009, and again in

          19      April of 2009, I see no additional information that

          20      would lead one to believe the odor problem will get any

          21      better since, with the exception of the flame, this

          22      plan has been in effect and currently is in effect and

          23      the odor and frequency are still unacceptable, which

          24      begs a question.  If the odor isn't controlled at
�     9

           1      5,200 tons per day, what assurances and evidence is

           2      provided in the draft permit that 7,500 tons increase

           3      will not increase -- the odor and the nuisance will not

           4      increase proportionately with the tonnage that is going

           5      to go into the landfill?

           6                It would appear to me a compromise has been

           7      reached between the OEPA and the Environmental

           8      Logistics to propose 7,500 tons per day without

           9      assurances that the nuisance odors will be abated.

          10                In the eighth paragraph of Mr. Thorp's

          11      letter -- this is what I am talking about picking old

          12      scabs, Jed -- of the Citizens' Advisory, Mr. Thorp

          13      states, "When the landfill was first permitted under
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          14      previous Rules, siting a landfill in a limestone quarry

          15      was deemed to be acceptable."  And I take issue with

          16      that.

          17                I distinctly recall at a public hearing held

          18      at John Gregg Elementary for comments related to the

          19      original permit Craig Waukinspau and Kyle Nahi had a

          20      heated argument regarding this very issue.  And in the

          21      OEPA literature, Craig showed me where it stated that

          22      the OEPA siting criteria that the siting of a landfill

          23      in a limestone quarry was not acceptable.  So are you

          24      in error in that paragraph?
�    10

           1                MR. THORP:  Tom, we don't respond to

           2      questions during the hearing but we will respond to

           3      them in the Response to Comments.

           4                MR. GARDNER:  Okay.  At every hearing since

           5      that time this point was brought up as evidenced by the

           6      transcripts and the video tapes we have of these

           7      hearings.  At no time in any of these hearings or in

           8      any of these responses to these questions were we told

           9      anything remotely related to a -- to a waiver until the

          10      hearing held at John Gregg Elementary on Thursday,

          11      November 13th, 2008, that a waiver had been granted,

          12      almost 15 years and numerous hearings later.  We

          13      learned then that there had been a waiver granted.  And

          14      it was 15 years that we have been asking the same

          15      question of the EPA and have not received an answer

          16      until Craig Waukinspau admitted at that time that they

          17      had granted a waiver.

          18                Now, if, in fact, Mr. Thorp's statement is
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          19      correct, why was a waiver necessary and when was it

          20      issued and by what director?  Shigartis, Jones or

          21      Director Koraleski?  Additionally, who recommended to

          22      the Director the waiver be granted?  Again, the fact

          23      the waiver was granted, as suggested by Craig

          24      Waukinspau, why has it become necessary to include
�    11

           1      another request for a waiver in the draft permit

           2      currently under study?  It doesn't make sense.  So,

           3      therefore, I have a great concern by granting that

           4      waiver, those aquifers in the Apex Landfill have been

           5      cracked, strip mined, limestone mined, dynamited.

           6      Those aquifers have been fractured and they are

           7      permeable.  So, therefore, you know, when those leach

           8      agents leach out -- and they will over time -- it's

           9      going right into the aquifer.  And unless someone can

          10      prove to me otherwise, it's going to affect our water

          11      and our quality of water for those of us who have

          12      wells.

          13                The Director made the statement that it's

          14      unlikely to adversely affect public health or safety.

          15      Now, unlikely is an operative word and I would imagine

          16      that President Roosevelt felt it was somewhat unlikely

          17      for the Japanese to attack Pearl Harbor, so unlikely, I

          18      don't feel real comfortable with that word.  Thank you.

          19                MR. THORP:  Next is Mark Paulette followed

          20      by, I think it's Mary Merrill.  Mark.

          21                MR. PAULETTE:  My name is Mark, M-a-r-k,

          22      middle initial A., last name Paulette, P-a-u-l-e-t-t-e.

          23      Since there is pending litigation in this matter, I

          24      have a prepared statement.
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           1                I would like to go on record opposing the

           2      Apex Landfill expansion project requested at this time

           3      because of the negative impact that the landfill has

           4      had on our area.  There are also countless

           5      noncompliance issues and the numerous health and safety

           6      violations, both past and present.

           7                I have been a resident of Township Road 267

           8      in Amsterdam on and off since June 27, 1971.  Since the

           9      arrival of the Apex Landfill to our neighborhood in

          10      January of 2006, we have seen our quality of life

          11      slowly deteriorate.  Residents of Township Road 266,

          12      267, 267-A, State Route 43 and County Road 39 are

          13      getting the brunt of the odors, fumes, chemicals, noise

          14      dust, etc. emanating from the Apex Landfill.  The odors

          15      have smelled so horrible at times I wanted to call in

          16      the Jefferson County homicide detectives to

          17      investigate.

          18                In July of 2006, I contacted then Ohio

          19      Attorney General Jim Petro regarding the Apex Landfill

          20      and the nuisance odor problems.  I was told via letter

          21      from his office that on Friday, July 14th, 2006,

          22      Mr. Bruce Misselwitz, the Jefferson County Health

          23      Commissioner, sent Apex Landfill a notification of

          24      noncompliance letter.
�    13

           1                On Tuesday, August 15th, 2006, a month later,

           2      Mr. Misseluitz sent Apex Landfill a second letter

           3      giving Apex 30 days to come into compliance or the
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           4      matter would be referred to Jefferson County Prosecutor

           5      Tom Straus and an injunction would be filed against

           6      Apex Landfill for noncompliance.

           7                On Tuesday, September 19th, 2006, the

           8      noncompliance issues at the Apex Landfill were

           9      discussed at a Jefferson County Board of Health

          10      meeting.

          11                I was later informed that an elaborate

          12      spraying system to neutralize the odors was installed

          13      at the Apex Landfill and we, the residents, would not

          14      have any more odor problems.

          15                Now here we are three years later, Thursday,

          16      July 9th, 2009, and the residents of the area are still

          17      going through the same motions and the daily diet of

          18      the Apex Landfill.  Nothing has been done to alleviate

          19      the nuisance odor problems or correct the noncompliance

          20      issues and the health and safety violations.

          21                There are numerous federal and state rules

          22      and regulations that Apex Landfill must follow.  But to

          23      this day, no one has come forward to enforce those

          24      rules and regulations.  There seems to be a big lack of
�    14

           1      accountability on everyone's part here.

           2                I was opposed to the Apex Landfill moving

           3      into Jefferson County when I was the senior planner of

           4      Jefferson County in 1990 and I am still opposed to the

           5      landfill today simply because the landfill is too close

           6      to residential areas and farmland in Jefferson,

           7      Harrison and Carroll Counties.

           8                In other words, Gentlemen, my neighbors and I

           9      are tired of our stomachs doing the peppermint twist
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          10      every day over this landfill.  Thank you.

          11                MR. THORP:  Mr. Paulette, Mark, if you want

          12      to submit a written copy of your comments to the court

          13      reporter.

          14                MR. PAULETTE:  Sure.  Thank you.

          15                MR. THORP:  Next is Mary Merrill.  Did I get

          16      that right?

          17                MS. MERRILL:  Yes.

          18                MR. THORP:  Followed by Fritz Tulencik.

          19      Mary.

          20                MS. MERRILL:  M-e-r-r-i-l-l.

          21                MR. THORP:  Mary, you might want to move the

          22      mic down or pull it out of there.

          23                MS. MERRILL:  The putrid -- I'm nervous.  The

          24      putrid stench from Apex reaches our home often,
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           1      approximately four to five days per week.

           2                One evening this week, early this week,

           3      through our open windows at about 1:00 a.m. the stench

           4      entered our home.  We closed the bedroom window and the

           5      other windows in the house but the stench did not leave

           6      until morning.  We were up and outside early and at

           7      6:45 the stench was still outside.  It left soon after

           8      that.

           9                My question would be other dumps that we have

          10      learned of -- now, two of them are in Florida -- have

          11      means of controlling the odors.  I would think that

          12      Apex would be able to learn about what they have done

          13      in controlling the stench.  I ask that Apex be required

          14      to install a means of removing the stench from the air
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          15      before being allowed to expand the amount of daily

          16      tonnage received.

          17                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Ms. Merrill.  Next is

          18      Fritz Tulencik followed by Gene Hoff.  Fritz.

          19                MR. TULENCIK:  Fritz Tulencik,

          20      T-u-l-e-n-c-i-k.

          21                Again, my name is Fritz Tulencik.  I have

          22      been a resident of Jefferson County for 66 years.  I

          23      have lived on Springfield Township Road 267, Amsterdam,

          24      for 34 and a half years.  Not everyone is opposed to
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           1      the Apex Landfill and maybe we will get to hear some of

           2      those people tonight, I'm sure.  I have been referred

           3      to as "one of those people," which I am quite proud of.

           4      Most recently I was referred to as "him" and I would

           5      assume that is lower case h-i-m, not upper case.

           6                I would like Director Korleski to know that I

           7      am not anti-landfill.  I am anti-stench.  I am pro

           8      progress, but I am anti-stench.  I am pro green energy,

           9      but I am also anti-stench.  I am pro schools, but I am

          10      also anti-stench.  I am pro bluebirds, but I am also

          11      anti-stench.  I am even pro little duckies swimming in

          12      a secluded marshland that I have seen on TV, but I am

          13      anti-stench.

          14                On a day when I do not smell the landfill two

          15      things come to mind:  No. 1, I am one day closer to

          16      smelling the stench.  No. 2, which one of my friends,

          17      neighbors, or someone else in the immediate area is

          18      getting the stench at this time?  So those are two

          19      things that come to mind.

          20                The draft permit.  We were told that the
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          21      Director renders his decision based upon technical

          22      information and scientific information.  I have

          23      certainly seen how well that has worked in the last few

          24      years.  Technical and scientific arguments and expert
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           1      presentations by people that Mr. Gardner and

           2      Mr. Johnson and others have brought forward just had no

           3      impact.  I know that our arguments are supposed to be

           4      based on scientific and technical information and I

           5      will go a step further than Tom.  That draft permit, if

           6      you have seen it -- and I think there's a couple copies

           7      in the back -- is probably a little over 2000 pages.

           8      Of those 2000 pages, I can say I have a slight

           9      understanding of 10.  The other several thousand pages

          10      are technical data and drawings and I (inaudible) Tom's

          11      question, how much those that reviewed those actually

          12      know about it.

          13                But, anyways, the 10 pages that I saw that

          14      had some impact on me or something I could understand,

          15      the first is C1 E.  It's a summary of Notice of

          16      Violations for the Apex Landfill.  I won't -- that's

          17      available for anyone to see.  But there's two things on

          18      here that jumped out for me.  "On April the 18th of

          19      2008, Apex accepts containerized liquid from Rapid

          20      Waste for disposal."  And that is a violation reported.

          21      That was on April the 18th of 2008, and submitted a

          22      letter to Ohio EPA, "The staff will be retrained and

          23      revisions will be made to waste acceptance procedures."

          24                On June 11th, 2008, "Apex accepts
�    18
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           1      containerized liquid from Rapid Waste for disposal."

           2                "Ohio EPA observes material disposed of from

           3      Rapid Waste."  I thought that was all taken care of.  I

           4      think some fines were paid so that's a moot point.  But

           5      to me, fool me once, shame on you; fool me twice, shame

           6      on me.  That sends up a red flag for me.  That is a

           7      concern in terms of self-monitoring.

           8                The other thing that I saw that I could

           9      recognize was an odor management plan.  And that's C8 3

          10      through C8 11, and I am quite impressed with it.  I am

          11      impressed with the odor management plan, everything

          12      that is said here.  Just like the other 2000 pages.  I

          13      had to be impressed when I read that.  Very smart

          14      people put that together and I guess some very smart

          15      people are reviewing it.

          16                And the same thing is true about this odor

          17      management plan.  My only problem with the odor

          18      management plan is that that management plan hasn't

          19      worked.  I want results.

          20                It wasn't in my statement, but we are talking

          21      about expectations.  My expectation is going to stay

          22      right here on odor (indicates).  I expect my air

          23      quality to be the same today, tomorrow as it was when I

          24      moved up there.
�    19

           1                And I -- we say the laws aren't going to help

           2      us out.  Well, that's where I need -- News 9 left on me

           3      already.  Well, I was hoping for News 9 maybe to step

           4      up to the plate and do some work.

           5                The Herald-Star, Dave Gossett is here.  Thank
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           6      you for being here.  This is where we need some help if

           7      our legislators -- if the laws aren't in place, then we

           8      need some help, some publicity for the fact that we

           9      have people suffering out here and maybe there is only

          10      a couple hundred families now.

          11                I am disappointed in this crowd -- I am not

          12      disappointed in the people that's here; I am

          13      disappointed in the number.  As that landfill goes up

          14      another seven stories, 75 feet -- is that about a

          15      seven-story building?

          16                SPECTATOR:  Some 75 feet.

          17                MR. TULENCIK:  Some 75 feet.  That odor will

          18      continue to spread throughout the area, I would assume.

          19      I don't think that is a bad thing.  We need to have

          20      more people smell it.  If you don't smell that odor,

          21      you don't appreciate it.

          22                I used to be ashamed of having people come

          23      out from Steubenville because I was ashamed of the odor

          24      they might spell.  I gave that up about a year and a
�    20

           1      half ago.  I told my wife, "I hope it smells as bad as

           2      it could possibly smell because no one will believe me,

           3      no one will understand unless they smell it

           4      themselves."  So those are the two things that I

           5      understood somewhat.

           6                And, you know, I think there's health -- I

           7      think there's health issues with the landfill.  The

           8      only problem is how do you prove that?  There's an odor

           9      and we can smell it and we can't prove that, so the

          10      health issue is part of it that will come to light 15
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          11      or 20 years down the road, probably.  I will be long

          12      gone.  Most of us, officials, Apex, Environmental

          13      Logistics all long gone.  It will be interesting to see

          14      what is down the road.

          15                Anyways, talking about the odor, 632 odor

          16      complaints called in to the Jefferson County Health

          17      Department.  That is for you to see and to review.

          18      It's not hidden information.  That is from January the

          19      1st of '09 to July 7th of '09, 632 odor complaints

          20      called in to the health department.

          21                I want results.  I don't want verbiage.  I

          22      don't want technical jargon.  This stuff looks good to

          23      me.  I am sure it looks good to Director Korleski and

          24      the engineers, but that's not good enough.  We want
�    21

           1      results.  I want results, and my expectations will stay

           2      up here.  Thank God our parents taught us that, that we

           3      are always to have high expectations and that should be

           4      for air quality too.

           5                We all know there is an odor problem.  That's

           6      why most of us are here.  That's what got most of us

           7      here.  Proving it, obviously, is a problem.

           8                Odor control experts from the landfill drive

           9      down my road.  I smelled something on June the 30th --

          10      from June the 24th to June the 30th was a terrible,

          11      terrible time.  On June the 30th for about 30 minutes

          12      somewhere between 6:30 and 8:30 or 9:00 there was a

          13      30-minute odor that came through that I explained to

          14      the lady at the health department -- she said, "What

          15      does it smell like?"  I said, "It's not of this world.

          16      It's nothing I have ever smelled before."
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          17                With that in mind, I completely -- oh, if we

          18      lived -- if we lived in a suburban area and they

          19      smelled what I smelled on June 30th, they would have

          20      called Homeland Security.  That's the kind of odor it

          21      was.  I told the lady, "Don't get upset with me.  This

          22      is the truth," and then I went in the house, locked the

          23      doors and closed the windows and drank beer.

          24                We need Jefferson County Health Department,
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           1      Ohio EPA to step up.  We need -- I need to know who is

           2      going to hold Environmental Logistics accountable.

           3      From time to time Jefferson County Health Department

           4      points to the Ohio EPA and Ohio EPA points back.  I

           5      talked to people in the back.  I already talked to

           6      people from the health department, and I talked to Dave

           7      Gossett, and I need the press to help me here.  I need

           8      for you to sit down with these people, get them on the

           9      record, write a report, and I was hoping for News 9 to

          10      do something, and like I said, long gone.  There's

          11      where I need help.

          12                To my friends and neighbors -- well, my

          13      neighbors, maybe my one friend.  My neighbors, keep

          14      calling.  Do the calls help?  I have no idea.  I have

          15      no idea if they help or not but I know if you don't

          16      call, I know what happens.  I've heard county officials

          17      talk about, well, things must be okay; we've gotten no

          18      calls.  I don't know if calling helps, but I know what

          19      not calling does.  It gives them ammunition to say

          20      everything is fine out there.

          21                In closing, I would like to thank the OEPA
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          22      for having the meeting and for being here.  I always

          23      know when you are going to be in town that we are

          24      probably going to have pretty clean air for a day or
�    23

           1      two, so I like the Ohio EPA when it comes to town.

           2                I know, Gary, we talked about having a

           3      satellite office placed in your barn.  I think that

           4      would be a good idea.

           5                Again, thank you for the opportunity to get

           6      on the record and, again, all I want to say is -- I

           7      don't care what the legislature is doing.  My

           8      expectations are going to stay high.  I expect there to

           9      be no odor and we are going to fight for that until we

          10      have to move away, until we have to abandon our homes.

          11      Thank you very much.

          12                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Fritz.  Next is Gene

          13      Hoff, followed by Beverly Christen.  Gene.

          14                MR. HOFF:  My name is Gene Hoff, G-e-n-e,

          15      H-o-f-f.  I live on Township Road 266.  I have been

          16      pretty quiet about what is going on with the dump.  I

          17      am almost -- I am not a public speaker.

          18                SPECTATOR:  It's all right.

          19                MR. HOFF:  No, I am okay.  I have been

          20      thinking long and hard about what I would say if I got

          21      in front of a crowd of people, what would I say about

          22      what is happening to us?  I am almost -- I am somewhat

          23      stymied right now in the fact that you have included us

          24      in anything at all.  Ninety-nine percent of what has
�    24

           1      gone on here -- I have been here for nine years.
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           2      Ninety-nine percent of what has been going on with this

           3      landfill we have been excluded from.  We don't know any

           4      more now than we did yesterday.

           5                I blame the EPA.  I blame you people, for you

           6      letting these nefarious people come here from New

           7      Jersey, or wherever you people come from, you came here

           8      and you have -- you have destroyed our lives.  I have

           9      spent nine laborious years building -- I bought the old

          10      Maynard's farm -- and any of you folks that lived out

          11      there know about this place.  It's a 150-year-old

          12      farmhouse.  I have spent nine years taking the barn

          13      down, the buildings.  I don't need this.  I talk loud

          14      enough.  Can you hear me back there?

          15                SPECTATOR:  Yes, loud and clear.

          16                MR. HOFF:  I have spent nine years taking

          17      that barn down, taking those buildings down.  I live in

          18      a recycled piece of property.  Everything on my

          19      property is recycled.  The barn is put into the house.

          20      Every stone, every board, every -- every busted piece

          21      of glass has been removed from my property.  I have

          22      been around this neighborhood.  I have seen the

          23      beautiful homes you people have, and they are

          24      beautiful, and you spent your life doing this, building
�    25

           1      these beautiful homes, your kids -- everything is

           2      ruined.  It's ruined by you dump people and you people.

           3      You people are evil.  You are nefarious and evil.

           4                Somebody give me my water.  My mouth is dry.

           5      Please, Honey.  And I want her five minutes too.

           6                MS. HOFF:  You can have my five minutes.  I
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           7      can't speak for shit anyway.

           8                MR. HOFF:  I was a businessman.  I am an

           9      inventor.  I got very fortunate to have invented a

          10      product that made me a lot of money.  I could have

          11      moved anywhere.  I am from Mount Pleasant, Ohio.  I

          12      have lived here all my life.  I love this area.  I like

          13      the people.  I love -- particularly love this area,

          14      everybody here, they are all good people.  We are all

          15      good people, but we are no good no more because we

          16      don't have nothing no more because you people came here

          17      and you have destroyed everything that we have done.

          18      You have destroyed my life.  You have destroyed my

          19      house.  Your stinking, filthy, filthy, stinking dump,

          20      it's in my clothes.  It's in my furniture.  It's in my

          21      face.  You are a violator.  You people, you people, you

          22      are terrorists.  You are killing us.  You are killing

          23      us.  Your filthy air is killing us.  Your noise is

          24      killing us and you are responsible and you Apex people
�    26

           1      are responsible.

           2                You people come here and you destroyed

           3      everybody's lives and everybody that lives here.  Our

           4      life, we don't have a standard of living.  We have no

           5      living.  You have destroyed us.  Everything I have done

           6      is gone.  Ruined.  Your stinking, filthy garbage, it's

           7      even on my animals.

           8                I don't know what I am supposed to say.  I

           9      don't know what I want to say.  It's not right.  This

          10      kind of stuff happens in China.

          11                You come here, you didn't ask us.  You didn't

          12      even discuss it with us.  You just showed up and you
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          13      did your dirty deed.  Well, I will tell you something,

          14      I am not leaving.  You're leaving.

          15                I swear to God, I don't know what to say.  I

          16      swear to God almighty I am ashamed.  I am ashamed

          17      that -- we're supposed to live in a democracy.  We are

          18      supposed to have a right.  I am going to tell you

          19      something.  We are going to die.  This dump is going to

          20      kill us.  You people are torturing us.

          21                It's 24/7 that stink and smell is in my house

          22      and that old house, it will not go away.  It's on

          23      everything I own.  I swear, I get up in the morning.

          24      We are human beings we respond to things.
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           1                When I was in Vietnam I responded to guns

           2      going off.  That's why I am alive now.  When that smell

           3      comes on me, you no what I do?  I break down.  I break

           4      down.  I can't think straight.  I can't breathe.  I

           5      can't function.  I am not a human being no more.  I

           6      feel like a damn dog.  How can you do this in this

           7      country?  Don't we have no rights?  My God almighty,

           8      where's our rights at?

           9                I'm sorry that -- I'm a pretty passive person

          10      but I'm telling you something, this is making me crazy.

          11      My life, everything I have done is gone and ruined.

          12      Everything is ruined and my reaction is what do I do?

          13      Who the hell do I go to?  Who do I go to?  I can't go

          14      to God.  It ain't none of his business.  I can't go to

          15      the sheriff.  What's he going to do?  What's he going

          16      to do?  Arrest you?  You should be arrested.

          17                You people are -- you are beyond belief.  You
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          18      are absolutely beyond belief what you have done and we

          19      are supposed to just roll over and take it.  We are

          20      supposed to let you -- how much more do you want from

          21      us?  How many more times are you going to kick me?  You

          22      already knocked me down.  You want to kick me some

          23      more?  You keep beating on us.  You have the audacity,

          24      you have the gall and the nerve to come here and ask us
�    28

           1      to give you permission to make this shit worse.  How

           2      dare you.  Do you think we are stupid?  Do you?

           3                I don't want applause.  I'll tell you what I

           4      want.  I want you people to go away.  I want you people

           5      to go away.  I was here first.  You've destroyed

           6      everything.  You have ruined us.  I have seen this

           7      man's home.  I'll tell you what, you can eat off his

           8      yard.  I have seen you people's properties.  It's

           9      beautiful.  What do you want us to do?  How much more

          10      do you want from us?  What more do you want from us?

          11                SPECTATOR:  Just 2500 tons a day, right?

          12      That's all they want.

          13                MR. HOFF:  It's money.  Yeah, News 9 is

          14      everywhere except where they belong.  News 9 is

          15      everywhere but here.  And I'll tell you something, I

          16      love the commercials, ain't that sweet, everybody is

          17      going green.  I'll tell you what is going green.

          18      Money, money, money.  That's what this is all about.

          19      This ain't got a damn thing to do with -- they don't

          20      gave a damn about nobody.  They don't give a damn about

          21      nobody.  They only give a damn about the almighty

          22      dollar.

          23                I'll tell you something, it's wrong what
Page 23



9938epa.txt

          24      these people are doing to us.  I'll tell you, this is
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           1      wrong.  I swear to God this is awful.  I'll tell you,

           2      sometimes I get up in the middle of the night and I sit

           3      and I look at my beautiful house and I know I have to

           4      leave.  I know I can't stay.  I can't live here.  My

           5      God, I am a human being.  I've got to be able to

           6      breathe.  That smell permeates us so bad and you know

           7      it does.  It gets on you to the point to where you

           8      can't function.  I can't do my work because -- I'll

           9      give you a good example.  Last night -- I don't know

          10      which one of you did it -- somebody dumped a dog.

          11      That's okay.  I'll adopt it.  I love the thing already.

          12      You dumped this dog but I have cats.  I heard a noise

          13      at 4:00 in the morning and I go out on the porch and

          14      there's this damn dog as big as a small horse, and, of

          15      course, the only thing I could think of was my cats.  I

          16      open the door up and the smell of your dump jumped all

          17      over me and I'll you what, I forgot about my cats.  I

          18      forgot about everything.  That's what it does to you.

          19      It literally engulfs you.  It sucks the life out of

          20      you.  You don't know what to do.  What are we supposed

          21      to do?  Who do we go to to make you people stop?

          22                MR. THORP:  Mr. Hoff, I have to ask --

          23                MR. HOFF:  I know, my five minutes are up.

          24      All right.
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           1                MR. THORP:  Yes, thank you.

           2                MR. HOFF:  Well, good because I am probably
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           3      going to have a heart attack if I continue.

           4                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Mr. Hoff.

           5                MR. HOFF:  Let me say one more thing.

           6                MR. THORP:  Yes.

           7                MR. HOFF:  You want me to make it quick,

           8      don't you, because you are in a big hurry to go

           9      somewhere.

          10                MR. THORP:  No, everybody has five minutes.

          11                MR. HOFF:  I'm sorry if I took more than my

          12      time.

          13                MR. THORP:  That's okay.

          14                MR. HOFF:  I'll tell you something:  If I

          15      offended anybody, I'm sorry, but I am going to tell you

          16      something, this can't stand.  I don't know what we are

          17      going to do.  I -- honest to God, I wish I had a -- I

          18      wish I could say something.  Once again, I'm sorry if I

          19      offended anybody.  Really I am.  I'm sorry.

          20                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Mr. Hoff.  Next is

          21      Beverly Christen.  Just as a point of clarification,

          22      each individual gets about five minutes.  We don't

          23      allow people to donate time to other individuals.  That

          24      would be a mad house for me to do that accounting so,
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           1      again, each person has five minutes.  Go ahead.

           2                MS. CHRISTEN:  My name is Beverly Christen,

           3      C-h-r-i-s-t-e-n.

           4                I would like to remind the EPA and everyone

           5      here that odor is not just a nuisance.  An odor is an

           6      actual molecule of the substance itself.  You perceive

           7      it in your nose because it's a real tangible thing.  It

           8      is an actual bit of that unearthly whatever.  And it's
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           9      going into your lungs.  It's absorbed into your blood

          10      stream.  It affects your entire system, including your

          11      brain.

          12                An odor is not just a nuisance.  It's a

          13      health issue.  The dust, into your lungs.

          14                A lot of people in this area have suffered

          15      from black lung.  People in this area are now going to

          16      be suffering from dump lung.

          17                Let's talk about flies.  Flies breed in

          18      filth.  They absorb this.  They regurgitate it onto

          19      whatever they land on.  That little fly speck is a

          20      killer.  What that fly bred in ends up in your food, on

          21      your hands, in your children's mouths.  If that fly is

          22      on a child's toy, the toy invariably ends up in the

          23      mouth.  Guess where the germs go.

          24                Gertrude Stein said, "A rose is a rose is a
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           1      rose."  A public nuisance is a public nuisance is a

           2      public nuisance.  A health issue is a health issue is a

           3      health issue.  We want this addressed and we want it

           4      stopped.

           5                Now, as far as this tonnage increase goes,

           6      they originally asked for 10,000 -- 10,000 ton total.

           7      They kindly lowered this to 7500 ton a day.  Now, this

           8      looks to me like they were applying for a platypus like

           9      the one up at Pittsburgh so that we would be content to

          10      put up with an elephant.  I don't think we want an

          11      elephant.  We couldn't have gotten a dinosaur anyway.

          12      They are all dead.  The 10,000 tons was a stalking

          13      horse.  As it is, that is a 42 percent increase.  We
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          14      don't need it.  We don't want it.  They can't control

          15      the odor.  They can't control the health issues with

          16      the tonnage they currently have.

          17                As far as the slope goes, three to one is

          18      pretty God damn steep.  Now, we get rain around here.

          19      I don't know whether anyone knows this or not, but the

          20      record for this entire area was 24 inches in 24 hours.

          21      Now, when you increase a slope you increase the speed

          22      of the water running down it.  When water speed

          23      doubles, the area capacity hews.  Hews.  And we are

          24      talking about three to one slope here.  Now, you can
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           1      imagine what is going to happen on the sides of that

           2      dump when you have got a serious rain with a serious

           3      slope.

           4                Yeah, Rumpke, you say that was an old dump,

           5      old technology.  Well, great.  I think we are looking

           6      at a possibility for another one.

           7                As far as your gas collection, ask about what

           8      happened up at Monroeville.  We're talking about

           9      horizontal migration.  We're talking a house blowing

          10      up.  And oh, yes, that was recent methane because it

          11      was hot methane.  Anybody remember about a methane

          12      sniffer?  Anybody here remember about that?

          13                I don't see proof that any of their punitive

          14      mitigation is actually going to mitigate a bloody

          15      thing.

          16                There's the old song about a cow's diet.

          17      No. 1, what the diet is supposed to be scientifically.

          18      No. 2, what actually ends up in the feed.  No. 3, what

          19      the cow actually eats, which frequently bears little
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          20      resemblance to either one or two.  Now, you can put all

          21      you want into a permit but the engineering, nice as it

          22      is, isn't always carried out to the point where it

          23      actually works.

          24                There's a great book, TO ENGINEER IS HUMAN.
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           1      If you really believe everything in that permit is

           2      going to work perfectly, I suggest you get that book

           3      out of the library and read it extensively.

           4                A public nuisance is a public nuisance is a

           5      public nuisance.  You say we aren't under the same

           6      stringent regulations with a dump as we would be if

           7      those public nuisance problems, dust, odor and flies,

           8      were coming from an agriculture operation.  In other

           9      words, you are saying that we are not as valuable here

          10      as they are out in Columbus.  Because they were lucky

          11      enough only to have an agricultural operation putting

          12      out dust, flies and odor.  In other words, our lives

          13      aren't the equivalent of someone closer to the seat of

          14      government.

          15                A public nuisance is a public nuisance is a

          16      public nuisance.  Expecting the health department and

          17      the County of Jefferson, as broke as they are, to pick

          18      up the burden of suppressing a problem of this

          19      magnitude is ridiculous when the problem is the direct

          20      result of Columbus.

          21                We would like to see you actually doing

          22      something.  Do what you were hired to do.  If the

          23      department of agriculture can suppress a nuisance,

          24      possibly you ought to be subsumed in that department.
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           1                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Ms. Christen.  Next up

           2      is Jim Williamson, followed by Sonja Mullen.  Jim.

           3                MR. WILLIAMSON:  By all my senses, the odor

           4      problem persists.  With permit numbers changed, all the

           5      involved parties are acknowledging the odor problem.

           6      The fact that the north slope only will be changed

           7      further acknowledges that second --

           8                SPECTATOR:  We can't hear you back here.

           9                MR. THORP:  Yeah, Jim, if you could use the

          10      mic.

          11                MR. WILLIAMSON:  The fact that the north

          12      slope only will be changed further acknowledges that

          13      problem.  I feel, living on the east side, that that is

          14      a discriminatory measure.  I love you all, but I don't

          15      like the stink either.

          16                SPECTATOR:  Take one for us.

          17                MR. WILLIAMSON:  This favors only the

          18      northern neighbors.  I'll be very brief here.  I think

          19      there's been a lot of good things said here today, but

          20      to the EPA, please enforce the regulations.  Do not

          21      depend on others to do your job.  Fulfill your

          22      obligation to the taxpayers.  Simply do your job.

          23                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Mr. Williamson.  Next

          24      is Sonja Mullen.
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           1                MS. MULLEN:  Sonja Mullen, S-o-n-j-a

           2      M-u-l-l-e-n.  Not i-n-s

           3                To make my question earlier clear, I asked a

           4      simple yes or no if the quality of life that was
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           5      available to the three representatives of OEPA would be

           6      considered equal to mine based on what you do know.

           7      And your response was no response.  And that no

           8      response at all kind of made it clear to me that you

           9      understand what we people are facing.  We are asking

          10      for the same availability of the quality of life that

          11      you folks have.

          12                Another thing I want you to be aware of is

          13      the Amsterdam library is rarely open at times when

          14      people who are employed, work for a living can get

          15      there.

          16                To Mr. Tulencik, a lot of people did not show

          17      tonight, I know, but a lot of people have given up on

          18      the OEPA for what they have seen so far.  A lot of

          19      people feel that this deal is signed, sealed and ready

          20      to be delivered.

          21                MR. THORP:  Sonja, if I could ask just a

          22      clarifying question, you mentioned in your comments

          23      that the Amsterdam library is not a good location.

          24      Would you like to propose a better location on the
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           1      record?

           2                MS MULLEN:  I don't know.  I can't think of

           3      one at this time.  Unless it would be a bank.  I don't

           4      know.

           5                The revised draft permit requested a change

           6      and permitted MSW from 5200 ton to 7500 ton per day,

           7      which still includes unlimited C and D.  Apex

           8      currently, from my understanding, accepts C and D that

           9      is pulverized.  Who, if anyone, determines the degree
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          10      of pulverization that can be accepted at Apex?  Has any

          11      been turned away because it was over-pulverized and not

          12      recognizable?

          13                The OEPA's viewpoint in granting the

          14      expansion permit to Apex appears to be mainly from the

          15      aspect of paper work in order.  It seems to me that the

          16      OEPA has become an agency that deals with documents and

          17      chairs meetings.  So, in other words, it's just all

          18      about paperwork.

          19                But there is a human side to this and it

          20      saddens me as well as frustrates me when I see what

          21      that landfill has done to my family and my friends that

          22      live nearby.  The odors at times are indescribable.

          23      They are putrid.  We alter our daily activities because

          24      of odors.  We wake up at night at three, at 4:00 in the
�    38

           1      morning and have to go around and close windows because

           2      of the smell.  And it's not just a smell.  It permeates

           3      your taste buds as well.  I never dreamed it would be

           4      like this.  My husband and I grew up around here.  I

           5      bought a house 29 years ago next to my parents thinking

           6      my children would move back here as well.  That's what

           7      I thought.  I never dreamed it to be like this.

           8                And I do feel that we have fallen off of

           9      Mr. Korleski's radar.  I know Apex has provided for

          10      wildlife and they say they have improved the quality of

          11      areas for wildlife but you certainly, sir, have not

          12      improved the quality of my life.

          13                It's very sad to me that the human side of

          14      this issue does not carry more weight or value when

          15      it's all said and done.  And to me it's a very sad
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          16      statement on moral obligations and values of the OEPA

          17      and our elected officials who I see so many are not

          18      present.

          19                There are some questions I would like

          20      answered by the OEPA.  Recently the OEPA issued a

          21      revision to be made in the ambient air quality

          22      standards.  In the Ohio EPA document it states, "Air

          23      monitoring sites maybe set up, among other things, for

          24      complaint areas."  I would like to know what
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           1      constitutes a complaint area.  There have been hundreds

           2      of calls fielded in the Jefferson County Health

           3      Department.  And I would like to have that clarified.

           4                Have seismic studies been done?  Are there

           5      any plans in the permit that addresses seismic

           6      activity?

           7                I would like to also know why the landfill

           8      gets notified or warned before any NOVs are issued.

           9                A recent ground watering monitoring -- ground

          10      water monitoring report requests a revised ground water

          11      monitoring plan be submitted due to change in bedrock

          12      and mine spoil horizon that changed while the landfill

          13      was being constructed.  I would like to know if that

          14      plan has been submitted and were there any revisions or

          15      projections made in that plan?

          16                It is my understanding that in Ohio you

          17      cannot place a landfill on a limestone quarry.  Apex

          18      was granted a waiver, as Mr. Gardner stated earlier,

          19      and it would seem to me that granting yet another

          20      exemption waiver, as stated in this application, to
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          21      continue a landfill on a limestone quarry that has

          22      caused immediate residents problems in enjoying the

          23      same quality of life as other citizens in Ohio is a

          24      very questionable act on behalf of the Ohio EPA.
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           1                I would like to know what are the materials

           2      that would constitute a revocation of the waiver for

           3      exemption referred to in the permit?

           4                And I thank you, the OEPA, for their time and

           5      everyone else for listening to me.

           6                MR. THORP:  Thank you.  I have a card that

           7      simply says Vukelic.  Is Mr. Vukelic here?  In that

           8      case, the next person is Don Johnson followed by

           9      Charlene Keenan.  Don.

          10                MR. JOHNSON:  My name is Don Johnson.  I live

          11      on Township Road 266 and for me saying too much is not

          12      enough, but one man has said it all and that's Gene.

          13      Gene talked for all of us.  And it's like this:  As far

          14      as I am concerned, we have been hit by a disaster.  And

          15      the disaster has called for help.  And what kind of

          16      help did we get from this outfit?  Nothing.  And you

          17      are not going to get any help either because we are the

          18      losers and they're the winners.  That's all I have to

          19      say about it.  I'm sorry.

          20                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Mr. Johnson.  Next is

          21      Charlene Keenan followed by Ross -- I think it's --

          22                SPECTATOR:  That's good.

          23                MS. KEENAN:  My name is Charlene Keenan,

          24      K-e-e-n-a-n.
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           1                Well, I pretty much said it when I first came

           2      in.  I have lived out here 48 years.  I raised eight

           3      children.  I have 18 grandchildren and eight

           4      great-grandchildren and we all live out here.  And when

           5      my children moved away they came back because they

           6      loved this area.  They built new homes and they are

           7      raising their families and guess what?  Every day they

           8      smell the dump too.  I live over on the next road over

           9      where the water tower is.  We smelled it occasionally,

          10      you know.  Wasn't that bad.  My main concern was my

          11      well.  Well, this past week we was getting the odor.

          12      Wednesday night, like I said before, the smell was

          13      horrible.  My bathroom stunk.  I thought it was my

          14      bathroom.  It wasn't.  I walked out in my living room.

          15      By that time because the door was open my living room

          16      stunk.

          17                Outside, my neighbors, the same thing.

          18      Walked over to their house, their house you couldn't

          19      stand to be in it.  You taste it in your mouth.  You

          20      taste it on your clothes.  I don't think we should have

          21      to put up with this.  I have great-grandchildren that

          22      have breathing problems.  They are on breathing

          23      machines.  They live out by the dump.  Now, is it from

          24      the dump?  Nobody is going to say.  The doctors aren't
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           1      going to say.  They don't know why these kids can't

           2      breathe and why they are on breathing machines.  I

           3      think it's because of the dump.  I think a lot of these

           4      people are having health problems because of this dump.

           5      It don't think we should have to put up with it.  I
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           6      don't think my kids should have to move.  I don't think

           7      they have -- they should have to have their homes

           8      destroyed by a dump.  Their taxes went up.  Why don't

           9      the dump pay for their taxes?  If they are going to

          10      ruin our homes, let them pay for it.  That's all I've

          11      got to say.

          12                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Ms. Keenan.  Ross, I

          13      think it's Detchon, perhaps.  Followed by Mary Baker.

          14      Go ahead, Ross.

          15                MR. DETCHON:  I have a brief statement.  I've

          16      also lived on Township Road 267 for over 35 years.

          17      When I moved here, just as Fritz said, you know, we had

          18      nice, clean air.  You could walk outside any time day

          19      or night and, you know, enjoy the fresh air and stuff.

          20      Now there's many days that as I sit on my porch or

          21      whatever, I have to get up and go in the house.  And

          22      even at times in the night, in the middle of night, we

          23      have had to get up and close the windows because it

          24      stinks so bad.
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           1                You know, another thing, in Ohio we don't

           2      even have very many regulations against anything going

           3      in the dump.  And I just read in the Herald-Star about

           4      two weeks ago with digital TVs, there's over 86 million

           5      analog TVs going into landfills and other places.  New

           6      Jersey and New York, I am pretty sure their landfills

           7      prohibit this.  In Ohio it's legal.  We have let in all

           8      these TVs.  They'll tell you, anybody you ask knows

           9      that lead is bad for us.  It's going to get into the

          10      water system and just as Miss Christen was talking

          11      earlier, you know, we have -- this area gets lots of
Page 35



9938epa.txt

          12      water so this water -- and this land has all been

          13      dynamited and the water is going to go straight down

          14      through into the aquifer and we are going to have this

          15      lead as well as all these other pollutants off of this

          16      stuff right in our water.

          17                The stink is bad but in the future we are all

          18      going to be paying for it in another way.  If we do

          19      live that long, we will probably have to put extra

          20      money into the State of Ohio to clean up this landfill.

          21      So I hate to see first our children that have all had

          22      to move out of the area and then they'll still probably

          23      have to pay for the pollution that has happened here at

          24      this area.
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           1                MR. THORP:  Ross, would you spell your last

           2      name for the record, please?

           3                MR. DETCHON:  D-e-t-c-h-o-n.

           4                MR. THORP:  Thank you.  Next is Mary Baker.

           5      Mary?  Is Mary here?  Going once.  Going twice.  Mary

           6      Baker.  Okay.  Next then Rick Gregor.  Rick had some

           7      written comments.  Did you want to speak on the record

           8      also?

           9                MR. GREGOR:  Yes.

          10                My name is Rick Gregor, G-r-e-g-o-r. I live

          11      at 575 Township Road 267.  I have lived there 33 years

          12      and rather than state what I was going to say, let me

          13      just reiterate that I hope you see all the frustrations

          14      that we have as citizens and that all the eloquent

          15      speeches and all the things and all the presentations

          16      that we have given you for at least 17 years now have
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          17      been rather futile attempts, apparently.  Having been a

          18      person that loves to read history, I think our founding

          19      fathers would have peed down their leg when they saw

          20      what you allowed to happen to us as individuals.

          21                And all I can say if you read -- you want to

          22      read and you want to see what our country is all about,

          23      go back and read the book JOHN ADAMS, and that will

          24      give you something that the common guy should count in
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           1      America and it should count in Jefferson County and we

           2      should count in Springfield Township also.

           3                MR. THORP:  Thank you Mr. Gregor.  The last

           4      person for whom I have a card is Deborah Castro.  And,

           5      again, if anybody else wants to put in comments, you

           6      can bring the blue card up or if Erin is around,

           7      perhaps she can grab it.  Go ahead, Deborah.

           8                MS. CASTRO:  Deborah Castro, D-e-b-o-r-a-h,

           9      C-a-s-t-r-o.  My address is 513 Township Road 267.  In

          10      1977 I left the State of Ohio in which I was born and

          11      raised and became a veteran.  I am an Ohio vet.  I came

          12      back after 30, coming back here after 21 years in

          13      California, 10 plus years of which I lived in

          14      Livermore, which is in northern California.  They

          15      supported a dump there, a landfill there in the City of

          16      Livermore.  City of Livermore was 71,000 people.  In

          17      the Port of Dublin, they have almost 80,000 people.  In

          18      the City of Pleasanton, they had almost 90,000 people.

          19      Never once in that 10 plus years did I smell that

          20      Landfill.  Not a once.  So when my realtor had to

          21      disclose to me that there was a dump in this area, and

          22      I had not seen this home, I never thought anything of
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          23      it because I never smelled the one in Livermore.  But I

          24      smelled the one here.
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           1                I came on a Saturday, Tuesday -- I am a

           2      smoker, do not smoke in my house -- went outside, the

           3      stench was horrid.  And I cannot believe that after all

           4      this fighting and all this arguing, that we still are

           5      here today.

           6                My question is to Apex.  I would like for you

           7      to identify that unidentifiable smell that I report

           8      constantly to the department of health.  What it does

           9      to me is it makes my nose bleed and I get sores in my

          10      nose, which do not heal quickly.  I do not know what it

          11      is.  I call it a chemical when I call it in because

          12      that is as close as I can come to.  It is not garbage.

          13      It's not -- I, with Mr. Tulencik here, I cannot

          14      identify it, but it really hurts my health.

          15                I would like to know what that chemical is

          16      and what the composition of that is.  And I would like

          17      to know if there are any ill effects to humans, to the

          18      environment, and to animals in the area.

          19                And No. 3, I just want it to be known my

          20      husband had triple bypass surgery recently.  Doctor's

          21      orders were for him to walk every day a little more and

          22      there were days that he could not follow those

          23      physician orders because he could not go outside

          24      because the odor was so bad.
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           1                My husband is also an asthmatic.  If he went
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           2      out there and coughed with that titanium plate in his

           3      chest, it could have been deadly to him.  So my husband

           4      was even affected by that.  He could not follow the

           5      physician's odors.  Okay.

           6                And my last question is bottled water,

           7      nowadays they are telling us the dangers of bottled

           8      water.  I want to know who is going to check my well

           9      water and tell me my well water is not good?  Is that

          10      my responsibility that all this crap is coming downhill

          11      and I know it's in my water.  I have never felt this

          12      bad in my life.  I know it is there.  Who is going to

          13      check my water?  You?  You can't take five minutes of a

          14      half of a pound of garbage I brought in that I

          15      collected for three days, couldn't stand it for no more

          16      than five minutes, and I want that on the record.

          17      Thank you.

          18                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Miss Castro.  Next is

          19      Gary DellaPenna.  Gary.

          20           A.   Gary DellaPenna, D-e-l-l-a-p-e-n-n-a.  I

          21      guess I would like to start with maybe a question or

          22      two.  A week ago, Sunday night, Monday, Tuesday, I know

          23      the health department had several phone calls of

          24      complaints regarding odors.  Seven days later five
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           1      people from the health department showed up to see what

           2      the problem was.  We thank you.

           3                Going back to the Ohio EPA, you guys sat down

           4      with the fine folks from Apex here to make sure that

           5      the permit process and application was all justified,

           6      all the paperwork was in order.  I have been begging

           7      Jed Thorp and Dave Schnald down here to please help us
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           8      fine citizens find the safe results out of this

           9      expansion.

          10                What I'm saying is why won't you folks sit

          11      down and help us people figure out what we need to do

          12      to stop this horrid smell?  But if you ask Ross Patten,

          13      or any of the other folks over there, he will tell you

          14      there's no smell.  He'll dispute that to the end.  He

          15      sends his experts out.  But I can tell you as I'm

          16      standing here if I go to the bar and come home, I smell

          17      like cigarettes and beer.  Those guys come out from the

          18      landfill and they try to smell it.  They already smell

          19      like the landfill.

          20                Now, I travel in and out of the area.  I am

          21      home three days, most of the time, out of the week.

          22      I'm gone five days out of the week.  I can attest to

          23      the fact that when I am gone, my sinuses clear up, I

          24      don't have the sore, scratchy throat, and as soon as I
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           1      come home, within 12 to 18 hours, I have the same

           2      problems repeatedly, over and over.  Now, I ask myself

           3      how can this be?  We're not getting an order.  But if

           4      we was getting an odor, they have an odor control

           5      management plan in place to take care of that.

           6                And I asked questions to our health

           7      department about this odor control.  And one of the

           8      methods they use out there is a water vapor spray.  And

           9      I asked a simple question:  What is the source of the

          10      water they use as a make up for these sprayers?  Is it

          11      an approved source?  Does it come from the county water

          12      system?  Does it come from the approved well?  No.
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          13                It actually comes from the sediment ponds.

          14      The sediment ponds that runs off the slopes and off the

          15      garbage is therefore put into a tanker that is not

          16      refrigerated so it can sit out there in the sweltering

          17      heat.  And, I don't know, I didn't do real good in

          18      biology -- maybe somebody can help me -- but I do

          19      believe microbiologisms (sic) and organisms, they

          20      continue to grow and now they spray this and if we can

          21      smell the juice they put into the water, I am sure that

          22      we are getting all the bad stuff.

          23                Now, as Dave Schnald assured me, it was very

          24      expensive equipment and fine misters, that there was no
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           1      way they was using sediment water for that procedure.

           2      My response for the health department was, "I'm sorry,

           3      but I've fished in strip ponds all my life and never

           4      got sick."  Well, those excuses are over with.  I am

           5      opposed to the expansion.  I never once said I was

           6      opposed the landfill.  All we ever asked for is a

           7      little bit of honesty about what you guys are doing and

           8      about what the health department is doing.  I am not

           9      the only one opposing it.  I know the Jefferson County

          10      Commissioners have sent in letters opposing it.  I know

          11      the Township trustees have sent in letters opposing it

          12      and, if I am not mistaken, the county health

          13      department, or health board, one of the two, has also

          14      sent in opposing it.  It baffles me why we are still

          15      here.

          16                Once again, when I call your office to get

          17      help and ask, "What can we do to get laws on the board

          18      so that we can control these efforts," don't turn and
Page 41



9938epa.txt

          19      run to them and say, "Well, let's back down to 7500

          20      tons."  Thank you.

          21                MR. THORP:  Thank you.  Next is Shawn Hoff.

          22      Shawn.

          23                MS. HOFF:  Somebody took my five minutes

          24      earlier and I just wanted to --
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           1                MR. THORP:  You can have their five.  Go

           2      ahead.

           3                MS. HOFF:  I am not much of a speaker, but I

           4      would like to have on record that your sense of smell

           5      is like the most sensitive sense that you have.  Think

           6      about it.  Your taste, touch, your sight, your hearing,

           7      your sense of smell is the most sensitive.  You are

           8      telling me that can't make you sick?  You smell these

           9      odors every day, it does get into your taste buds.  You

          10      can actually taste it.  It actually makes you sick just

          11      having the smell present.  There's tests done.  There

          12      are studies done on your senses.  Look them up OEPA,

          13      look up the studies that have been done on your sense

          14      of smell.  It is the most sensitive.  You can be hurt

          15      by what you smell.  You can be burnt by your sense of

          16      touch.  You can be -- I mean, your sense of taste.  You

          17      taste something bad, I mean -- the sense of smell needs

          18      to be on the record for somebody to take a look at so

          19      that you understand that everybody here isn't crazy.

          20      You know, it hurts you.  And there are health issues.

          21                I think everything else has been gone over

          22      and I happen to be one that does feel it.  I can feel

          23      it in my nose.  I can feel it in my throat.  I don't
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          24      know how many other people do.  I think somebody ought
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           1      to be making -- taking a record of what health issues

           2      are amongst us.  I think that's it.

           3                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Ms. Hoff.  Is there

           4      anyone else here who would like to put oral comments on

           5      the record here tonight?  Going once, going twice.  In

           6      that case, the time is now 8:54.

           7                SPECTATOR:  Excuse me.  I would.

           8                MR. THORP:  I'm sorry.  If you could step

           9      forward, ma'am, up to the mic and state your name and

          10      spell it for the record, please.

          11                MS. CARROLL:  My name is Faye Carroll,

          12      C-a-r-r-o-l-l.  I live at 55 Township Highway 267 and

          13      all I have to say is only a couple words and probably

          14      doesn't mean too much, but I have sat here and I have

          15      heard the EPA say, "Well, there is a limit on this and

          16      there's a limit on that and there is a rule on the

          17      odor.  And they are allowed to have so much odor."

          18      What is wrong with trying to go the extra mile to

          19      please a few people and let them have a nice, healthy

          20      and happy life?  Is there anything wrong with that?  I

          21      don't see anything wrong with that.

          22                And the same way with the people of Apex.  Is

          23      there anything wrong with that person saying, "Well,

          24      let's try to go along a little with the people.  We are
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           1      ruining their lifestyle or we are interfering with the

           2      lifestyles they have had.  Let me try and see if I

           3      can't improve their lives a little bit."  I don't think
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           4      it's too much to ask.  Thank you.

           5                MR. THORP:  Thank you.  Okay.  Again, is

           6      there anyone else here who would like to put oral

           7      comments on the record tonight?  Yes, if you would,

           8      come forward and state your name and spell it for the

           9      record.

          10                MS. BOYD:  I am Sandra S. Boyd.  We live down

          11      in Amsterdam.  We live on 164 just above Alumsworth

          12      store.  Everyone that has spoke here tonight has been

          13      from Red Dog and in that area.  And I understand all of

          14      your problems.  I feel for you because we are getting

          15      it in Amsterdam also.  Not anyone has said a thing

          16      about Amsterdam.  And we get it down there, too, and it

          17      does stink bad.  Thank you.

          18                MR. THORP:  Again, is there anyone else who

          19      would like to put comments on the record?  Yes, sir, in

          20      the back, if you want to come forward, state your name

          21      and spell it for the record, please.

          22                MR. DORSEY:  My name is Shawn Dorsey.

          23      S-h-a-w-n D-o-r-s-e-y.  I live at 15 Church Street in

          24      East Springfield.  I also own a place on 43, a
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           1      business, and that's 8400 State Highway 43.  It's

           2      pretty bad.  It's a family-owned business.  Thirty-one

           3      years.  I've invested 11 so far and own it myself.

           4      And, needless to say, when my customers and myself

           5      stand in my parking lot and smell the odors of the dump

           6      it makes me think why do I want to stay?  We are

           7      supposed to draw businesses into Ohio to help our

           8      communities, our schools, and everything healthwise and
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           9      I have seen nothing but our area destroyed.

          10                The smell that these people are talking about

          11      is true.  It's so bad.  I have been at a friend's house

          12      and I have been in my house and the smell was so bad I

          13      literally had to put something over my face so that I

          14      wouldn't vomit.

          15                So, again, the equal opportunities that you

          16      guys have of fresh air, we would like the same.  And I

          17      also can't understand how any of this will draw any

          18      more businesses into our community but, if anything,

          19      run everybody out.

          20                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Mr. Dorsey.  Ma'am,

          21      did you want to put a comment on the record also?

          22                MS. MERRILL:  I already spoke but I did not

          23      give my address.  Do you want that on the record?  It

          24      might be good.
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           1                MR. THORP:  Would you say your name again so

           2      we can match it up again with your testimony?

           3                MS. MERRILL:  Mary Merrill.

           4                MR. THORP:  Mary Merrill.  And your address?

           5                MS. MERRILL:  8575 County Highway 39,

           6      Bloomingdale.  I live halfway between Annapolis and

           7      East Springfield.  And the odor is horrendous.

           8                MR. THORP:  Thank you.  Is there anyone else

           9      who would like to speak on the record?

          10                Mr. Johnson in the back, come forward and

          11      state your name and spell it for the record.

          12                MR. JOHNSON:  Raymond Johnson, J-o-h-n-s-o-n.

          13      I live right here at 91 Township Highway here at the

          14      Countryside.  I look around the room here and I see
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          15      teachers, friends and family, a lot of people I grew up

          16      around and we all lived in this area and we are all

          17      concerned about what is going on here.  I've got a dad

          18      that he had his life dream of building a home.  He had

          19      a business in the area.  Built his home, wanted to

          20      raise kids there.  He did that.  Now he is getting into

          21      his later years of life and wants to just have a

          22      garden.  Can't have a garden.  The stuff lands on the

          23      plants, afraid to eat the plants, whatever he grows in

          24      his garden.  Been doing this for years and now he can't
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           1      do it any longer.

           2                We are down to what is going to happen later

           3      on.  Right now we are saying, oh, the smell is bad.  It

           4      is.  But 15 years from now when all this is said and

           5      done and seven years from now when this dump is not

           6      supposed to be bringing anymore in, now what is going

           7      to happen?  Will it be one of those where they are

           8      going to come back and say, yeah, it's from the dump.

           9      That's what happened to this area.  I don't think you

          10      want that.  If you guys could look into this and get it

          11      straightened out now before it's too late for our kids

          12      and for what is going on right now.  Thank you.

          13                MR. THORP:  Thank you, Mr. Johnson.  Anyone

          14      else?  Yes, sir.  Step forward and state your name and

          15      spell it for the record.

          16                MR. JOHNSTON:  Dave Johnston,

          17      J-o-h-n-s-t-o-n.  I live here at 736 Township Road 267.

          18                I just wanted to say that a couple of months

          19      ago it was on the news the EPA declared this area the
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          20      worst air in the nation.  And yet we got an EPA that

          21      wants to put out some more stink, make some more

          22      problems for us.  It just don't make sense to me why

          23      this was even be -- why they would even do this.

          24                And then another thing is we are ganging up
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           1      on the EPA though but we've got to remember our

           2      politicians.  You don't see old dumb Wilsons up here,

           3      do you?  Charlie was so dumb he couldn't even get the

           4      petition signed in his right area and his son is just

           5      as bad.  They are the ones you have got to talk to, the

           6      ones in the state and the ones in the national.

           7      Everybody ought to write them a letter.  And the thing

           8      is -- well, I better stop on that.  But, anyhow, I feel

           9      sorry for you guys, but you got to go with the rules

          10      and I know it's pretty dumb, especially when the EPA is

          11      more worried about carbon dioxide.

          12                Global warming, that's a bunch of B.S.  We

          13      ought to be worried about methane and carbon monoxide.

          14      They are a health hazard.  They are poisonous.  Yet we

          15      worried about -- we got a goofy president who wants to

          16      give us carbon -- just to get more taxes is all they

          17      want.  Anyhow, that's all I've got.

          18                MR. THORP:  Okay, Dave.  Is there anyone else

          19      here, again, who would like to put comments on the

          20      record?  Tom, question?

          21                MR. GARDNER: Jed, are you going to answer my

          22      question that I posed earlier on or is that not part of

          23      this?

          24                MR. THORP:  All the questions that we receive
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           1      on the record we respond to in writing.

           2                MR. GARDNER:  When?

           3                MR. THORP:  Once -- I can't put on a definite

           4      timeline.  Sometimes it takes a month to get the

           5      responses written but you will receive a response in

           6      writing, and if you want to call me, Tom, I'll be happy

           7      to talk with you about it one-on-one.

           8                MR. GARDNER:  Thank you.

           9                SPECTATOR:  When do we see a decision coming?

          10                MR. THORP:  It's really impossible to say.  I

          11      am just trying to be honest with you.  I don't have a

          12      timeline or a deadline.

          13                Okay.  If there are no further requests to

          14      present testimony, we will end the hearing.  The time

          15      is now 9:05.  Remember, written comments will be

          16      accepted through the close of business on July 23rd,

          17      2009.  Again, comments can be sent to Ohio EPA Division

          18      of Solid and Infectious Waste Management, Attention:

          19      Systems Management Unit, P.O. Box 1049, Columbus, Ohio

          20      43216.  This concludes tonight's hearing.  Thank you.

          21                               - - -

          22                The hearing concluded at 9:05 p.m.

          23                               - - -

          24
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